
From:     
To:         
Date:  14/12/2012 2:16 pm 
Subject:  Water Fluoridation Act Changes 
 
 
 
>>>       12/14/12 14:15 >>> 
 

        
 

   
 
Further to our telephone conversation today, I confirm our invitation to you to attend Council Meeting at 
Council Chambers, 26 Railway Street, Gatton on Wednesday 19 December 2012 at 11.30am in a closed 
forum of Mayor and Councillors and CEO and senior officers to provide a briefing on the health benefits of 
fluoridation and as to the credibility of the pro and anti fluoridation arguments. As the agenda of the 
meeting is to be finalised by close of business today, please respond by return email with your acceptance 
or otherwise of this invitation. 
 
 
Thanks and regards 
 
 

 
 

  
        ---------------------------- 

Chief Executive Officer 
Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
PO BOX 82 
GATTON QLD 4343 
LVRC: 1300 00 5872 
Direct:         
Mobile:       
Fax: 07     
Email:                           
Web:                   
 
 
________________________________ 
Please update all correspondence and references to: 
LVRC 
PO Box 82 
GATTON QLD 4343 
 
________________________________ 
This email (including any attached files) is confidential and is for the intended recipient(s) only. If you 
received this email by mistake, please, as a courtesy, tell the sender, then delete this email. 
 
The views and opinions are the originator's and do not necessarily reflect those of the Lockyer Valley 
Regional Council. Although all reasonable precautions were taken to ensure that this email contained no 
viruses at the time it was sent we accept no liability for any losses arising from its receipt. 
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 Enquiries to:  
     ogram 
   nit 

Telephone:  
Facsimile:  
File Ref:  

 

  
Mr Ian Flint 
Chief Executive Officer 
Lockyer Valley Regional Council 
PO Box 82 
GATTON  QLD 4343 
 
 
Dear Mr Flint 
 
Thank you for your letter of 9 January 2013 regarding the continuation of fluoridation within the 
Lockyer Valley Regional Council area. 
 
Please find enclosed a copy of the correspondence sent to your Mayor, Councillor Steve Jones, 
following a request made to the Queensland Health representatives that attended the Lockyer 
Valley Regional Council meeting on the 19 December 2012.  
 
I can assure you that evidence around the safety and benefits of water fluoridation is frequently re-
evaluated and fluoridation has been proven as a safe and effective means of preventing tooth 
decay for people of all ages.  It is supported by key expert health authorities, including the National 
Health and Medical Research Council, the Australian Dental Association, the Australian Medical 
Association and the World Health Organization. 
 
Such that local governments can feel protected in making fluoridation decisions based on the 
advice of key expert health authorities, the latest amendments to the Water Fluoridation Act 2008 
include an expansion of the indemnity clause within section 96 of the Act. This section now 
requires the State to indemnify a local government against all costs and expenses in relation to 
any civil proceeding taken in court relating to fluoridation decisions. 
 
I hope that this information assists you and the Lockyer Valley Regional Council in making a 
fluoridation decisio  ve any further queries in relation to fluori  o not 
hesitate to contact  Director – Water Program via telephone    who 
will be pleased to  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
Dr Jeannette Young 
Chief Health Officer 
      /      / 

Office Postal      
Queensland Health 
Level 7, 143-167 Charlotte Street 
BRISBANE  QLD 4000 

GPO Box 48 
BRISBANE  QLD 4001 
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a) That  ingested  artificial  fluoride  added  to  the  public water  supplies  does  in  fact 
prevent tooth decay 

 
Since the introduction of water fluoridation in 1945, hundreds of studies around that world 
have attested to its beneficial effect in reducing tooth decay.  A major 2012 Australian study 
(1)  analysed  all  studies  published  worldwide  from  1990‐2010,  in  any  language,  which 
reported the effects of water fluoridation.   
 
The authors  found 59 studies  from 10 countries, yielding 83 separate evaluations  into the 
effectiveness  of  water  fluoridation  (30  for  primary  teeth  and  53  for  permanent  teeth).  
Thirteen of  the studies were conducted  in Australia.   Every single one of  these 59 studies 
without exception  showed a  significant  reduction  in  tooth decay  from water  fluoridation, 
with  most  showing  reductions  in  decayed,  missing  i.e.  extracted,  or  filled  primary  or 
permanent teeth of around 20‐50%.  Many of these 59 studies also used complex statistical 
analysis to measure whether the reduction in tooth decay could have been caused by other 
factors, but other factors showed little effect.   
 
It is important to note that a reduction in decayed, missing, or filled primary or permanent 
teeth may actually underestimate the beneficial effect of fluoridation.  Fillings have a limited 
life span, and are regularly replaced or repaired.  Preventing one permanent tooth cavity in 
a child can prevent not just one cavity, but a whole lifetime of treatment on that tooth, with 
each successive treatment becoming larger, more complex and more expensive.   
 
The largest fluoridation study in Queensland was published in 1996 (2).  It compared tooth 
decay levels in 1,649 Townsville children who grew up drinking fluoridated water, and 2,939 
Brisbane  children who grew up drinking non‐fluoridated water.   The  study  confirmed  the 
findings  of  other  studies  and  large  reviews,  finding  an  average  of  45%  fewer  decayed, 
missing or filled tooth surfaces in Townsville children up to the age of 12.  This amounted to 
an  average of  almost  three  fewer decayed, missing  or  filled  tooth  surfaces  in  Townsville 
children than Brisbane children.   The study concluded that "Water  fluoridation appears to 
provide a substantial public health benefit for children in Townsville.   
 
Since 1989, Australian Child Dental Health Surveys have been conducted ever year or two, 
and they consistently show that Queensland children (until recently largely non‐fluoridated) 
have more tooth decay than children from other states (largely fluoridated).  However, this 
could underestimate the beneficial effect of  fluoridation, since not all children  from other 
states  drink  fluoridated  water,  and  many  Queensland  children  will  have  come  from 
interstate  or  Townsville  and  other  fluoridated  towns,  and  will  have  grown  up  drinking 
fluoridated water.  To address this issue, the 2002 Australian Child Dental Health Survey (3) 
examined more  than 136,000 children across Australia, and  specifically  recorded whether 
they  drank  fluoridated water  or  not.    The  survey  found  that  no matter which  state  or 
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territory children came  from, what age group  they were  from, whether  they were  rich or 
poor, or whether they lived in the capital city or regionally or remotely, children who drank 
fluoridated water had significantly less tooth decay than children who didn't.   
 
Australia’s  National  Health  and Medical  Research  Council  (NHMRC)  agrees.    Their  2007 
review The Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation 2007 (4) concluded that “The existing body of 
evidence strongly suggests that fluoridation is beneficial for reducing dental caries”.  
 
Most worldwide studies of water fluoridation are conducted on school children, but a large 
Australian study published in March 2013 (5) was based on data collected from the National 
Survey  of  Adult Oral Health  2004‐06.   Dental  examinations  of  5,505  adults  from  around 
Australia  found  a  10‐11%  reduction  in  decayed,  missing  and  filled  teeth,  and  a  30% 
reduction  in decayed and  filled  tooth  surfaces  in adults with a >75%  lifetime exposure  to 
fluoridation  compared with  adults with  a  <25%  lifetime  exposure.    The  <25%  and  >75% 
levels were used since the majority of people move around during their lives, and very few 
Australian adults had 0% or 100%  lifetime exposure  to  fluoridated water.   These benefits 
were not affected by other factors, and were also seen in adults who had grown up prior to 
the introduction of fluoride toothpaste and fluoridated water.  Greater benefits were shown 
for  adults who  had  been  drinking  fluoridated water  for  longer.   Water  fluoridation will 
therefore benefit all people in the community, not just children.    
 
 
b) Does not cause harm, side effects or adverse reactions of any kind, to humans of 

any age 
 
Water  fluoridation  is probably  the most widely  studied public health measure of all  time, 
and hundreds of studies over many decades have assessed possible associations between 
water fluoridation and a wide range of health conditions.  Systematic reviews conducted in 
Australia  and  overseas  consistently  report  that  scientific  evidence  does  not  support  an 
association between water fluoridation and any adverse health effect. 
 
The NHMRC’s 2007 review The Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation (4) also found no clear or 
convincing evidence of any adverse health effects  from water  fluoridation, and concluded 
that “Fluoridation of drinking water remains the most effective and socially equitable means 
of  achieving  community‐wide  exposure  to  the  caries  prevention  effects  of  fluoride.    It  is 
recommended that water be fluoridated in the target range of 0.6 to 1.1 mg/L…”.    
 
Water  fluoridation  has  been  successfully  provided  to  residents  of  Townsville  and most 
Australian  towns  and  cities  for many  decades,  and more  recently  to  other  Queensland 
towns  and  cities.    If  fluoridation  caused  any  harmful  effects,  it  would  not  be  strongly 
endorsed  by  the  World  Health  Organization,  Australian  Medical  Association,  Royal 
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Australian  College  of General  Practitioners,  Royal  Australasian  College  of  Physicians,  and 
other  health  authorities  in  Australia  and  overseas.    More  recently,  the  Public  Health 
Association of Australia, Australian Healthcare and Hospitals Association, Australian Health 
Care Reform Alliance, National Rural Health Alliance, and Australian Council of Social Service 
also  announced  their  support  for  water  fluoridation.    No  reputable  health  authorities 
anywhere  in  the world have ever opposed water  fluoridation on health grounds.   On  the 
contrary, health authorities around the world continue to endorse water fluoridation.   
 
The  only  known  side  effect  of  community  water  fluoridation  is  a  slight  increase  in 
prevalence of dental  fluorosis  in  children.    If  it occurs,  fluorosis  is usually  very mild, only 
detectable by a dentist, and does not damage the teeth.  Tooth decay on the other hand is a 
destructive and disfiguring process,  repair of which causes  its own cosmetic problems, as 
well as pain, trauma, and significant financial cost.  The benefits of fluoridation far outweigh 
any risks.   
 
Following  an  independent  investigation  of  water  fluoridation  in  2007,  the  Australian 
Consumers  Association  and  Choice magazine  reported  that  “There’s  now  solid  scientific 
evidence that fluoride added to drinking water helps to protect your teeth from decay.  The 
claims  of  those  who  oppose  fluoridation  are  often  based  on  outdated  information, 
questionable  research and  selectively picking  studies  that  support  their  case.   There’s no 
convincing evidence for harmful effects from fluoride at the levels used in our water supply” 
(6).  
 
The Queensland Department of Health would welcome the opportunity to respond should 
you have questions about any specific health conditions. 
 
 
c) That baby formula made up on artificially fluoridated water is safe for infants of all 

ages 
 
Fluoridated  water  can  be  safely  used  to  reconstitute  baby  formula.    The  2007  NHMRC 
review  referred  to  earlier  specifically  investigated  the  issue  of  baby  formula  being 
reconstituted with fluoridated water.  They concluded that “Recent Australian research does 
not show an association between use of  infant  formulae and dental  fluorosis.   The critical 
period for development of dental fluorosis is after the first twelve months of life, by which 
time  the  majority  of  Australian  children  have  ceased  exclusive  formula  consumption.  
Measurements were made of 49 samples of formula available at supermarkets, finding that 
the fluoride concentrations have fallen considerably to allow reconstitution with fluoridated 
water” (4). 
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Anti‐fluoridation groups often claim  that  the American Medical Association and American 
Dental  Association  advise  against  the  reconstitution  of  infant  formula  with  fluoridated 
water.  This is not true.  The American Medical Association and American Dental Association 
advise people of all ages to drink fluoridated water, just as health authorities do in Australia.   
 
Water  fluoridation  at  around 1 part per million has been practised  around  the world  for 
more  than  60  years.    The  consumption  of  fluoridated water  has  been  endorsed  by  the 
Australian  Medical  Association,  World  Health  Organization  and  American  Academy  of 
Pediatrics, and does not pose a health risk to pregnant women,  infants or young children.  
Water fluoridation gives babies and young children the best possible chance to grow up with 
healthy teeth.  
 
 
d) Does your organisation recognise the finding of the European Court of Justice, that 

the forced fluoridation through public water supplies, is a medication 
 
The European Court of Justice ruling referred to on many anti‐fluoridation web sites related 
to the free movement of goods through the European Union, and the distinction between 
medicinal products and food additives.  The case had nothing to do with fluoridation, and no 
legal  authorities  in  Europe  have  ever  suggested  that  it  did.    The  words  “fluoride”  and 
“fluoridation”  do  not  appear  anywhere  in  the  court  ruling,  and  countries which  practice 
water fluoridation continue to trade freely with other countries as they did before the court 
ruling.    
 
The European Court of Justice ruling was delivered in 2005.  A UK anti‐fluoridation activist, 
Mr Doug Cross, found the ruling four years later in 2009 and concluded erroneously that it 
related  to  fluoridation.   Mr  Cross  then  distributed  his  argument  to  anti‐fluoridation web 
sites around the world.   
 
Mr Cross has no legal training, nor does he appear to have sought legal advice on this issue.  
Legal statements have been added to the bottom of Mr Cross’s web page in an attempt to 
support  his  argument,  but  none  of  these  legal  statements  even  mention  fluoride  or 
fluoridation.    A  disclaimer  at  the  bottom  of  Mr  Cross’s  web  page  states  that  “Please 
remember that I am not a qualified  lawyer, so my proposals are offered as an  incentive to 
take a different approach to the evaluation of the  legitimacy of water fluoridation.    If you 
are interested, get my conclusions checked out by an appropriately qualified expert”. 
 
The Queensland Department of Health is aware of only one legal case in Europe relating to 
claims of water fluoridation being a medication and a breach of human rights.  In this 1993 
Jehl‐Doberer v Switzerland case, the complainant argued that fluoridation violated his rights 
under Article 8 of  the European Human Rights Convention.   The European Commission of 
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Human  Rights  disagreed,  ruling  that  other  considerations,  such  as  the  benefits  to  public 
health, outweighed his preference not to drink fluoridated water.     
 
No  governments  or  legal  systems  or  health  authorities  in  Australia  have  ever  described 
fluoride  used  in  water  fluoridation  as  a medication.    In  2006,  the  National  Health  and 
Medical Research Council, the federal government's Department of Health and Ageing, and 
the  New  Zealand  Ministry  of  Health  described  fluoride  as  a  ‘nutrient’  in  the  Nutrient 
Reference Values for Australia and New Zealand (7).  They added that "Because of its role in 
the prevention of dental caries  (decay),  fluoride has been classified as essential  to human 
health".   
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file:///D|/userdata/HieattA/Desktop/Chinchilla_TEXT_130328151931.htm[28/03/2013 3:20:03 PM]

name-of-water-supplier: Western Downs Regional Council
name-of-treatment-plant: Chinchilla WTP
location-of-treatment-plant: Chinchilla
service-provider-ID: SPID480
family-name:  

given-name:  

position: Utilities Reporting Officer
phone: 07 4679 4227
fax: 07 4679 4099
mobile: .
email:  

date: 1/31/2013
reporting-period-from: 01/10/2012
reporting-period-to: 31/12/2012
number-of-days-in-the-quarter: 92
number-of-fluoridated-water-samples-analysed: 182
prescribed-concentration-for-local-government-area: 0.8
average-measured-fluoride-concentration: 0.70
min-measured-fluoride-concentration: 0.18
max-measured-fluoride-concentration: 0.89
number-of-samples-exceeding-1.5mg fluoride/L: 0
comments:
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file:///D|/userdata/HieattA/Desktop/Dalby_TEXT_130328151814.htm[28/03/2013 3:18:39 PM]

name-of-water-
supplier:

Western Downs Regional Council

name-of-treatment-
plant:

Dalby Water Treament Plant

location-of-treatment-
plant:

Dalby

service-provider-ID: SPID480
family-name:  

given-name:  

position: Utilities Reporting Officer
phone: 07 4679 4227
fax: 07 4679 4099
mobile: .
email:  

date:  

reporting-period-
from:

01/10/2012

reporting-period-to: 31/12/2012
number-of-days-in-
the-quarter:

92

number-of-
fluoridated-water-
samples-analysed:

190

prescribed-
concentration-for-
local-government-
area:

0.8

average-measured-
fluoride-
concentration:

0.65

min-measured-
fluoride-
concentration:

1.04

max-measured-
fluoride-
concentration:

0.04

number-of-samples-
exceeding-1.5mg
fluoride/L:

0

comments:
Fluoride dosing offline from 16:00 05/10/12 to 30/10/12 due to maintenance and
inspection. Refer to 'Notice of Period of Non Operation' dated 19/10/12. Plant offline 25-26
December 2012 over Christmas period.RTI
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From:        
To:     
Date:    m 
Subject:  Fwd: Fluoride 
 

 
 ested. This was sent to ceo@aurukun.qld.gov.au as    is acting CEO. He 

was the Chief Operating Officer. 
 

 
 

    
  gram 

Environmental Health Regulation and Standards 
Health Protection Unit 
Dep    
Ph.   
Fax   

    
   

  
 

    
  

      
      

Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962 
 
 
>>>   5/02/2013 11:39 am >>> 
 

  
  I understand that messages have been mixed over the past few months with fluoridation, but things 
seem clearer now. As we see it:Recent amendments to the Water Fluoridation Act mean that local 
governments will now make the decision to add or remove fluoride from their community water supplies 
The Act now requires that this decision must take into account “the best interests of the community”, 
which is not defined in the Act. Up to now we have advised Councils that amongst the things to consider 
could be: the benefits to individuals of avoided dental costs and associated pain and suffering for 
community members; the cost to Council of ongoing operation of fluoride dosing plant; the support of all 
peak medical and health organisations for fluoridation; the low credibility of commonly cited health 
claims (eg impact on children’s IQ, causes cancer, fluoride is a “mind control drug” etc); statewide surveys 
show over 60% support for fluoridation; and long wait lists for public dentist at remote localities). The 
state government will provide 100% funding    for the installation of a fluoride dosing unit at Aurukun, but 
this funding will not be available after June 2014. That means a decision to go ahead would have to be 
taken in sufficient time for installation and commissioning to go ahead and final payment to be made by 
about April 2014. My current understanding is that once Council has the infrastructure in place they 
would then have access to three years of operational and maintenance funding of up to $50,000 per year 
from Dept of State Development and Planning. After this, Council would    have to meet all ongoing costs 
for the operation of the dosing unit. Dept of Health is happy to come to Aurukun to present to Council on 
the benefits of fluoridation. Attendees will be myself and              of the Brisbane 
Dental Hospital. 
 
We would therefore be grateful if you could indicate whether this would be of benefit to Council 
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and, if so, when might be a convenient time for us to come. 
Regards 
 

 
 

    
  

Environmental Health Regulation and Standards 
Health Protection Unit 
Department of Health 
Ph. (   
Fax (    
Mob.      

   
  

 
    
  

      
      

 
Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962 
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From:        
To:  ld.gov.au 
CC:      
Date:    
Subject:  Fluoride 
 
 

  
  I understand that messages have been mixed over the past few months with fluoridation, but things 
seem clearer now. As we see it:Recent amendments to the Water Fluoridation Act mean that local 
governments will now make the decision to add or remove fluoride from their community water supplies 
The Act now requires that this decision must take into account “the best interests of the 
community”, which is not defined in the Act. Up to now we have advised Councils that amongst 
the things to consider could be: the benefits to individuals of avoided dental costs and associated 
pain and suffering for community members; the cost to Council of ongoing operation of fluoride 
dosing plant; the support of all peak medical and health organisations for fluoridation; the low 
credibility of commonly cited health claims (eg impact on children’s IQ, causes cancer, fluoride is 
a “mind control drug” etc); statewide surveys show over 60% support for fluoridation; and long 
wait lists for public dentist at remote localities). 
The state government will provide 100% funding  for the installation of a fluoride dosing unit at 
Aurukun, but this funding will not be available after June 2014. That means a decision to go 
ahead would have to be taken in sufficient time for installation and commissioning to go ahead 
and final payment to be made by about April 2014. 
My current understanding is that once Council has the infrastructure in place they would then 
have access to three years of operational and maintenance funding of up to $50,000 per year 
from Dept of State Development and Planning. After this, Council would  have to meet all 
ongoing costs for the operation of the dosing unit. 
Dept of Health is happy to come to Aurukun to present to Council on the benefits of fluoridation. 
Attendees will be myself and     of the Brisbane Dental Hospital. 
 
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
Dep    h 
Ph. (   
Fax   
Mob     

   
  

 
    
  

      
PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4006   
 
Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962 
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From:       
To:       
CC:      
Date:    
Subject:  Re: Fluoridation  
 
Hi    my bio attached. 
 

 is the Director of Brisbane Dental Hospital.  He is a former state president of the 
   n Dental Association, and sits on numerous state and federal dental committees.  He 

holds Masters degrees in public health and epidemiology, and lectures at both the University of 
Queensland and Griffith University Dental Schools. 
  
Regards, 

 
 

   
 

   al 
Me    l Health Services 

 
    

 
 
>>>   2/13/2013 11:10 am >>> 
Hi  
He    y short bio: 
  
 

 
 

  is the Director of the Water Program in the Queensland Department of Health and 
   ed the Department’s Water Fluoridation Program since its inception in 2008. He has 

previously worked in the Queensland Department of Natural Resources and Water as well as the 
Queensland EPA and has a background in the water industry. He holds a PhD in environmental 
science. 
  
If you want anything more, just let me know, 
 

 
 
 

    
  

  lation and Standards 
Health Protection Unit 
Dep    h 
Ph.   
Fax   
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    4006   

 
Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962 
 
 
>>> "     @charterstowers.qld.gov.au> 13/02/2013 10:40 am >>> 
 
Good morning   and    
  
Thank you for your confirmation in respect to your attendance at the Fluoridation Public 
Information session to be held at Charters Towers on Monday 25th February 2013. 
  
Council’s Mayor, Cr    has requested from each of the presenters a short bio about 
yourselves. 
  
These bios will be shared amongst the presenters as well as being given to the Chairperson of 
the evening to assist them with introductions on the night. 
  
If you could please provide the same to myself by close of business Monday 18th February 2013, 
this would be helpful. 
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
  
 

  
     

  egional Council 
P O Box 189 
Ch      4820 
07    
Fa    
W        owers.qld.gov.au 
 
  
 
From       @health.qld.gov.au]  
Sent:   
To:   
Cc:     
Sub     
 
  
 
Thanks      I understand that        of Qld Health's Water Quality Unit) and I 
will be  ters Towe       b 25 to talk about fluoridation.  I've cc'd 

 -mail to  and     who coordinates Qld Health's fluoridation work.  I'm sure 
 will be i  tact  he next couple of weeks to make arrangements. 

   wishes, 
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Brisbane Dental Hospital 
 
Metro North Oral Health Services 
 

 
 

    
 
 
>>>       2/8/2013 4:08 pm >>> 
 
  
  
 

  
     

  gional Council 
P O Box 189 
Charters Towers  Qld  4820 
07    
Fax    
Web:  www.charterstowers.qld.gov.au 
 
  
 
From     
Sent:   2013 4:07 PM 
To:  @health.gov.au  
Sub     tion 
 
  
Good afternoon Mr Foley 
  
I have listened to your message on the Mayor’s telephone. 
Frank asked if I would respond to you. 
As you are aware the Charters Towers Regional Council is planning a public information session 
in respect to Fluoridation on Monday 25th February 2013 at time to be confirmed approx. 6.30 
p.m. to 8.30 p.m.  
The Mayor is looking for the presenters to give a 15 minute presentation. 
If you wish to discuss this matter further, the Mayor’s mobile telephone number is:   

 or email:       
 

Council’s CEO    can be contacted through my contact details as well. 
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Kind regards 
 

  
     

  egional Council 
P O Box 189 
Charters Towers  Qld  4820 
07    
Fax    
Web:  www.charterstowers.qld.gov.au 
  
 
Charters Towers Regional Council - Email Disclaimer 
 
You have received this email from an employee of the Charters Towers Regional 
Council.This e-mail message is privileged and confidential, and intended only for the recipient(s) 
to which it is addressed. Any views or opinions expressed within this e-mail are solely those of 
the author. The Charters Towers Regional Council makes no assurances either expressly or 
implied that the information provided within this e-mail is fit for any official purpose.  If you are 
not the intended recipient, or the person responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended 
recipient, please notify the sender of this message or send an e-mail to 
postmaster@charterstowers.qld.gov.au immediately, and delete all copies of this message.  
 
This e-mail has been scanned and cleared by MailMarshall mail scanning software 
 
*******************************************************************************
* 
This email, including any attachments sent with it, is confidential and for the sole use of the 
intended recipient(s). This confidentiality is not waived or lost, if you receive it and you are not 
the intended recipient(s), or if it is transmitted/received in error. 
Any unauthorised use, alteration, disclosure, distribution or review of this email is strictly 
prohibited. The information contained in this email, including any attachment sent with it, may be 
subject to a statutory duty of confidentiality if it relates to health service matters. 
If you are not the intended recipient(s), or if you have received this email in error, you are asked 
to immediately notify the sender by telephone collect on Australia +61 1800 198 175 or by return 
email. You should also delete this email, and any copies, from your computer system network 
and destroy any hard copies produced. 
If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that 
relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and/or publication of this email is 
also prohibited. 
Although Queensland Health takes all reasonable steps to ensure this email does not contain 
malicious software, Queensland Health does not accept responsibility for the consequences if any 
person's computer inadvertently suffers any disruption to services, loss of information, harm or is 
infected with a virus, other malicious computer programme or code that may occur as a 
consequence of receiving this email. 
Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of 
the Queensland Government. 
*******************************************************************************
*** 
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Charters Towers Regional Council - Email Disclaimer 
You have received this email from an employee of the Charters Towers Regional Council.This 
e-mail message is privileged and confidential, and intended only for the recipient(s) to which it is 
addressed. Any views or opinions expressed within this e-mail are solely those of the author. The 
Charters Towers Regional Council makes no assurances either expressly or implied that the 
information provided within this e-mail is fit for any official purpose.  If you are not the intended 
recipient, or the person responsible for delivering this e-mail to the intended recipient, please 
notify the sender of this message or send an e-mail to postmaster@charterstowers.qld.gov.au 
immediately, and delete all copies of this message.   
This e-mail has been scanned and cleared by MailMarshall mail scanning software  
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From:      
To:      d.gov.au 
CC:       @health.qld.gov.au 
Date:    53 am 
Subject:  Fwd: RE: Cairns Regional Council - Request for Further Information from 
Queensland Health 
 
Good Morning  
  
I apologise if you have already received an email from me containing the information below - we 
are having trouble with our email this morning. 
 

  has requested I respond to you on his behalf. 
  Councils are still in the process of making fluoride decisions.  The list below details Councils 

where we are pretty certain the decision has been finalised: 
  
North Burnett - ceasing - Council resolution 
South Burnett - ceasing - Council resolution 
Tablelands - not commencing - Council resolution 
  
Brisbane City - continuing - Mayoral announcement 
Ipswich City - continuing - Mayoral announcement 
Somerset - continuing - Mayoral announcement 
Scenic Rim - continuing - Media announcement 
Central Highlands - continuing - Media announcement 
Banana Shire - will commence - advised Department of State Development Infrastructure and 
Planning 
 

 is not in the office today.  If you have any further queries please do not hesitate to contact 
 

  
Kind regards 
  
 

  
  ntal Health Officer - Water 

 
 
Environmental Health Regulation and Standards 
Health Protection Unit 

     
  

     
 
PO Box 2368 
Fortitude Valley BC 4006 
Phone:       
Fax    
Out    r for Environmental Health: 1800 128 962  
  
Visit us on the web at:  
http://www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/ehu/eh-science-regulation.asp  
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>>>        cairns.qld.gov.au> 17/01/2013 1:56 pm >>> 
 

 do you have some sort of score card with those in, out and undecided as of today? 
 putting a report together for our Council which need to be finalised by Monday morning and 

it would be good to include the state of play. 
Thanks 

  
  

     
Water &      Regional Council 
Phone     
Email:      | URL: 
cairns.   
Mail:PO Box 359, Cairns Q 4870 | Office: 119-145 Spence St, Cairns Q 4870 
Pplease consider the environment before printing this email 
  
  
  
  
 
From:    @health.qld.gov.au]  
Sent:      
To:    
Cc:      
Sub          rom Queensland Health 
 
  
 
Dear  
 
Things are ch  th fluoridation so I can update you on some of the points below.  
As discussed,  and I are happy to do our short presentation to Council, and to 
answer any q        may have regarding the safety and effectiveness of water 
fluoridation. We now have additional requests for presentations to Moreton Bay Regional Council 
and Northern Peninsula Area Regional Council, and I'm sure more requests will follow. We have 
now learned that North and South Burnett RCs have decided to discontinue fluoridation, and 
Tablelands will not be starting up their two dosing units installed last year but not yet operational. 
Central Highlands RC will continue fluoridation of Blackwater, Tieri and Emerald.  To further 
clarify my report from the debate on the amended Fluoridation Act, Ministers McArdle and 
Springborg both strongly supported the science behind the safety and effectiveness of water 
fluoridation as did the speaker for the ALP, Curtis Pitt, Member for Mulgrave. 
 
  
 
If Council considers it essential to better inform the Cairns community via some form of open 
session before making its decision, QH is happy to provide speakers for a public meeting, but we 
have found in the past that poorly facilitated public meetings on fluoridation often degenerate 
into shouting matches with, to be honest, most of the shouting coming from opponents of 
fluoridation. Of course, those members of the community have an equal right to be heard on this 
topic, and we would not seek to deny that. But equally, standing up on a stage and being 
shouted at is not something many public health advocates would invite.  
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So, please let us know what Council's preference is on this issue. I guess our preference on the 
whole would be for us to attend a regular Council meeting, which we assume would have the 
opportunity for some community members to attend, and then to allow Council to convene its 
own engagement with the community, as it is Council that must make the final decision. 
 
  
 
Regards, and happy to discuss further, 
 
  
 

 
 
 

 
    

  
  gulation and Standards 

Health Protection Unit 
 
Department of Health 
 
Ph.   
Fax   
 

    
   

  
 

    
  

      
 
PO Box 2368, Fortitude Valley BC, 4006   
 
Out of hours number for water quality issues: 1800 128 962 
 
 
 
>>>     @cairns.qld.gov.au> 15/01/2013 3:18 pm >>> 
 
Dear  
  
Further to our telephone discussion earlier today, I was able to inform our acting General 
Manager for Water & Waste; Mr Alex Ung, of the following points: 
  
·         QH is available for a presentation to Councillors by arrangement if required. Dr 
Jackson and Michael Foley from the Australian Dental Association are conducting (on request) a 
short information session with Q&A’s to help those make the decision in the best interest of the 
community. 
·         Currently, Mackay 31/1/13, Redlands 29/1/13 and Gympie 16/1/13. 
·         GJ confirms that currently none of the Potable water providers in Qld that have 
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implemented fluoride to date have made a decision to discontinue. 
·         GJ confirms 4 suppliers confirmed decision to continue, including Brisbane CC and 
Ipswich CC. 
·         Bundaberg has not yet made an official decision on fluoride.  QH/ADA have presented 
there earlier this month. 
·         GJ confirms Qld state wide pole: 60% in favour, 20% against (3/1). 
·         GJ confirms that when present for the reading of the bill that led to the amendments 
to the Fluoridation act 2008, both sides of the political divide confirmed their continued support 
for use of fluoride. 
  
I have been requested that in relation to the first dot point that I ascertain your availability for 
early February, to conduct a presentation with Q&A’s with our Councillors. If you could advise of 
some dates, I can reply with suitable confirmation. 
  
In addition, are you able to advise if QH are also available to present to the community at large 
on the same topic? 
  
I’ve copied our GM and relevant Council officers in on this email. 
  
Look forward to your reply at your earliest convenience. 
  
Regards, 
  
  

    
Wa       irns  cil 
P:    | F:  | M:   
E:          cair     
Ma     |Office: 119-145 Spence Street, Cairns 
Pplease consider the environment before printing this email 
 
________________________________________ 
Cairns Regional Council Disclaimer 
 
"This message, and any attachments, may contain privileged and confidential information 
intended only for the use of the intended addressee(s). Any unauthorized use of this material is 
prohibited. If you receive this message in error, please notify the sender immediately, delete the 
message and destroy any printed or electronic copies. 
 
Opinions expressed in this e-mail are those of the sender and do not necessarily represent the 
views of the Cairns Regional Council. Council does not accept any responsibility for the loss or 
damage that may result from reliance on, or the use of, any information contained in this e-mail 
or attachments." 
 
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
To:   @northburnett.qld.gov.au 
CC:          
Date:    
Subject:  Water Fluoridation Act 2008 
Attachments: Water Fluoridation Act 2008 extracts.pdf 
 
Hi  
  
As discussed, the following information is provided now that Council at its meeting yesterday 
formally resolved to cease to fluoridate the water supplies in North Burnett.  
  
I have attached the relevant sections of the above Act for your information. 
  
Councils decision is in essence a decision under Section 7 Subsection 3 (page 9) under the Act 
and is formally known as a Fluoridation Decision. 
  
Under Section 13 Subsection 2 (page 11) the North Burnett Council must give the Chief Executive 
a notice (this is formally know as a Fluoridation Notice) stating that Council has made a 
fluoridation decision and the nature of the decision.  
  
The fluoridation notice must be publish at least once in a newspaper circulating in the area 
serviced by the water supply. 
  
Council is required at least 30 days before ceasing to add fluoride to the water supply give the 
fluoridation notice to the Chief Executive and publish the fluoridation notice to advise the public.  
Basically you would put the fluoridation notice in the local paper that circulates in Gayndah, 
Mundubbera and Monto. 
  
So that you are aware there is no template for how to word the fluoridation notice. The reason 
for this is that Council has made a decision that it is not in the best interests of the North Burnett 
community to fluoridate the water supply. The reasons for ceasing to fluoridate will vary from 
one Council to the next, therefore there is no template.  
  
You can send the fluoridation notice to the Chief Executives delegate as follows. 
 

  
 th Regulation and Standards 

Health Protection Unit 
Queensland Health 
PO Box 2368 
Fortitude Valley BC QLD 4006 
  
There are some practical issues that Council must decide now that it has made this decision.  
Importantly Council still holds bags of sodium fluoride powder and will end up with a fluoride 
saturator full of concentrated fluoride solution which all needs to be disposed off..  
The question is do you time the ceasing of fluoridation once you have exhausted these supplies 
and run out the concentrate in the saturator or are the facilities shut down, notwithstanding the 
30 day advice periods, then find a way to get rid of the powder and fluoride concentrate.  
  
If Quantum Chemicals, who are your supplier, won't take the bags of fluoride powder back you 
may have to pay to get rid of them or another local government might take them off your hands. 
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I will discuss with   when he gets back how to shut down these dosing facilities safely, so 
they do not pose   health risk in the future. This is critically important. 
  
If you have any queries please call me. 
Regards 
  
 

    
Senior Environmental Health Officer 
Wide Bay Public Health Unit  
Chief Health Officer Branch  
Queensland   
Telephone:     
Fax: (       
Mob:    
Email:          
Addre   
              Hervey Bay Q 4655 
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From:  Greg      
To: Alan   
CC:     
Date:  19/02/2013 11:27 am 
Subject:  Result 
 
Hi Alan, 
Nice to see you yesterday, and Kev of course. I guess the vote went as predicted, but still it is 
worryingly close. Let us know if you ever need any additional information or comms material for 
Council to provide to people. We can provide that. The anti's  have been very organised and 
well-resourced, so I'm sure people have been made probably more alarmed now than when the 
fluoride was first added. 
 

          
 

 
Cheers 
 

 
 

  
    

  
  ulation and Standards 

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
Level 1, 15 Butterfield Street 
HERSTON  QLD 4006 

PO Box 2368 
FORTITUDE VALLEY BC 

                      

 

 Enquiries to:            
         Water Program 

      otection Unit 

 Telephone:            
Facsimile:            
File Ref:  
  

title initial last name 
occupational title (if relevant) 
organisation (if relevant) 
address 
CITY   STATE (eg QLD)   POSTCODE 
 
 
Dear title last name 
 
As you may be aware, Parliament has recently amended the Water Fluoridation Act 2008.  These 
amendments are significantly different from the proposed changes circulated for consultation in 
October of this year. 
 
The primary alteration to the Act is the removal of the mandatory requirement to fluoridate all 
relevant public potable water supplies.  Local governments must now determine if it is in the best 
interests of their communities to implement, or to continue, fluoridation. 
 
Where a water supplier for a community is not a local government the changes to the Act will 
require the water supplier to act on the local government’s decision. 
 
Full details of the changes to the Act are provided in the explanatory document enclosed.  The 
revised Act is expected to be available online shortly at http://www.legislation.qld.gov.au/. 
 
Also enclosed is a frequently asked questions document addressing some of the most common 
queries about the changes that have been asked of Queensland Health, the Department of State 
Development, Infrastructure and Planning and the Queensland Water Directorate since 
announcement of the amendments on the 29 November 2012. 
 
Fluoridation has been proven as a safe and effective means of preventing tooth decay, for people 
of all ages, and is supported by peak health bodies including the National Health and Medical 
Research Council, the Australia Dental Association, the Australian Medical Association and the 
World Health Organization. 
 
When considering whether fluoridation is in the best interests of a community Queensland Health 
recommends local governments consider the significant oral health benefits that are associated 
with drinking water fluoridation.  With the State Government providing up to 100% of the eligible 
costs associated with the installation of fluoride dosing infrastructure, local governments should 
carefully balance the costs to rate payers of operating and maintaining fluoride dosing 
infrastructure against the savings for rate payers in terms of avoided dental visits and associated 
pain and suffering from tooth decay.  
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To assist local governments in determining what is best for their communities Queensland Health 
is able to offer the services of oral health and public health professionals to brief local government 
representatives on the health benefits of fluoridation and to assist Councillors in assessing the 
credibility of common pro- and anti-fluoridation arguments. 
 
Should you have further que                 documents enclosed, or wish to arrange 
for a         se contact                 – Water Program, Queensland Health via 
(07)     
 
 
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

                      

 

 
Prepared by:             
                            
             
          
    7 December 2012 
    
Submitted through:         
                    

         
               
 
Cleared by:          
              
               
          
    December 2012 
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MEMORANDUM 
 

To: File 

  

  From:  
   

Subject: Fluoride Quarterly Reports for Central Highlands Regional Council 

    

 
 
In response to several media requests about the reporting of fluoride concentrations 
through the quarterly reports, a brief review of compliance with this reporting was 
undertaken on 5 Dec 2012. Several reports from Central Highland Regional Council were 
found to be missing, and some reports indicated unacceptable average fluoride 
concentrations (below required levels). 
 
An inquiry was made to Council by  Senior Environmental Health Officer 
who was informed that the Council Environmental Health Officers had been collecting 
their own weekly samples and reporting on those test results. Greg instructed the Council 
that the reports should summarise the daily operational testing performed at the water 
treatment plant, and asked them to resubmit all the reports with the correct information. 
 
Previous reports are being kept to document that Council has been compliant in 
reporting, but they do not contain the proper test results. 
 
 
 
 

 
Sr. Environmental Health Scientist 

  11 / Dec / 2012 RTI
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Prepared by:    
       

Health Protection Unit / Environmental Health Regulation and 
 m 

      
       
 
 
Submitted through:  name 

   position title 
    branch/unit title 
    telephone no. 
    date 
 
 
Cleared by:   name 

   position title 
    branch/unit title 
    telephone no. 
    date 

 

RTI
 R

el
ea

se

RTI Document 76

s.73

s.73

DOH-DL-12/13-010



file:///D|/userdata/HieattA/Desktop/Miles_2012-Q4_TEXT_130328151334.htm[28/03/2013 3:14:09 PM]

name-of-water-supplier: Western Downs Regional Council
name-of-treatment-plant: Miles WTP
location-of-treatment-plant: Miles
service-provider-ID: SPID480
family-name:  

given-name:  

position:   ting Officer
phone:    

fax:    

mobile: .
email:  

date:  

reporting-period-from: 01/10/2012
reporting-period-to: 31/12/2012
number-of-days-in-the-quarter: 92
number-of-fluoridated-water-samples-analysed: 133
prescribed-concentration-for-local-government-area: 0.8
average-measured-fluoride-concentration: 0.55
min-measured-fluoride-concentration: 2.78
max-measured-fluoride-concentration: 0
number-of-samples-exceeding-1.5mg fluoride/L: 2
comments: OWSR notified of high fluoride results 30/01/2013.
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WATER FLUORIDATION REGULATION 2008 

SECTION 11 
FORM 3 

 
 

FLUORIDATED WATER QUARTERLY REPORT 

 

 
 

 
1. Water Supplier and supply Details 

 
Name of Water Supplier 

Mackay Regional Council 

 
Name of Treatment Plant    Location of Treatment Plant 

Nebo Road Water Treatment Plant  218 Nebo Road Mackay QLD 4740 

 
Service Provider Registration Number 

489 

 
2. Contact Details 
 

                  mes/s  Position 

           Environmental Officer 

 
Phone    Fax    Mobile 

                                 
 
Email 

                     
 
Signed        Date 

 22/3/2013 

 
3. Results 
Reporting Period 
 From  1st July to   30th September Year   2012 
 
Fluoridated Water Results for the above quarter 

Number of fluoridated water samples analysed as per section 13 
Of the Water Fluoridation Regulation, 2008 

77 

Averaged measured fluoride concentration 0.203 mg/L 
Maximum measured fluoride concentration 0.92 mg/L 
Minimum measured fluoride concentration 0.06 mg/L 
Number of samples exceeding 1.5 mg fluoride/L 0 
 

This form must be retained by the water supplier for the period of at least 5 years.  
Completion of the table above ensures compliance with the reporting requirements of 
Section 11 of the water Fluoridation Regulations, 2008 

 
Version 1 Form 1 
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
 

                 ames/s  Position 

           Environmental Officer 

 
Phone    Fax    Mobile 

                                 
 
     

                     
 
Signed        Date 

 22/3/2013 

 
3. Results 
Reporting Period 
 From  1st October to   31st  December  Year   2012 
 
Fluoridated Water Results for the above quarter 

Number of fluoridated water samples analysed as per section 13 
Of the Water Fluoridation Regulation, 2008 

78 

Averaged measured fluoride concentration 0.10 mg/L 
Maximum measured fluoride concentration 0.131 mg/L 
Minimum measured fluoride concentration 0.095 mg/L 
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
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1. What kind of fluoride is being used in Redland City’s water supply? Is it sodium fluoride, 
hexafluorosilicic acid, fluorosilicic acid (hydrofluorosilicate), sodium fluorosilicate or some 
other form of fluoride?  

Response to be provided by Seqwater as to specific compound used for Redland supply. 

QH suggested additional wording: 

The Water Fluoridation Regulation permits the following forms of fluoride to be added to a public 
potable water supply: 

 Sodium fluoride (NaF) 
 Sodium fluorosilicate (Na2SiF6) 
 Fluorosilicic acid (H2SiF6) 

Naturally occurring fluoride in an alternative water source where the concentration of fluoride is 
higher than the prescribed concentration. 

2. Is the fluoride to be used of pharmaceutical grade, or is it the untested industrial grade? 
That is, is the fluoride that is being used made specifically for fluoridation of water, or is it 
a waste product from an industrial process such as from an aluminium or a fertiliser 
process?  

QH suggested response: 

The fluoridating agent used in Queensland is sourced from manufacturers who supply it for the 
purpose of water fluoridation. It is neither “pharmaceutical” nor “industrial waste”.  

Queensland legislation requires that fluoridation chemicals must not contain any impurities at 
levels that are likely to adversely affect public health. Drinking water providers who fluoridate are 
required to check the level of impurities in fluoridation chemicals by obtaining an analysis 
certificate for each batch supplied. If such a certificate cannot be obtained from the manufacturer, 
importer or supplier, the water provider must have the purity of the fluoridation chemical analysed 
by an appropriately accredited laboratory prior to adding any to the drinking water supply.   

3. Where does the fluoride chemical that is used in our water come from? Is the fluoride 
sourced from Incitec Pivot (Fertiliser Company) in Geelong, Alcoa (Aluminium), or is it 
imported from China, Italy, Belgium or Japan? Who has oversight over the supplier 
especially if it is a foreign supplier?  

Seqwater to provide detail as to fluoride source. 

QH suggested additional wording: 

Drinking water providers in Queensland are free to purchase fluoridation chemicals from 
whichever supplier they choose.  The Queensland Government does not store information on the 
suppliers used by individual providers; however providers are routinely audited to ensure drinking 
water fluoridation is being undertaken safely and that fluoridating agents meet the rigorous quality 
requirements specified in both the Queensland fluoride legislation and the Water Fluoridation 
Code of Practice.   

As previously stated Queensland legislation requires that fluoridating agents must not contain any 
impurities at levels that are likely to adversely affect public health. Drinking water providers who 
fluoridate are required to check the level of impurities in fluoridation chemicals by obtaining an 
analysis certificate for each batch supplied. If such a certificate cannot be obtained from the 
manufacturer, importer or supplier, the water provider must have the purity of the fluoridation 
chemical analysed by an appropriately accredited laboratory prior to adding any to the drinking 
water supply..  
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4. Has the fluoride that is being used been approved by the Therapeutic Goods 
Administration (Australia)? Is each batch of fluoride purchased subject to the approval of 
the Therapeutic Goods Administration (Australia)?  

QH suggested response: 

In Australia, the Therapeutic Goods Administration (TGA) is responsible for regulating medicines 
to ensure their quality, safety and efficacy. The TGA is not involved in the assessment or 
regulation of fluoridation chemicals when used for the purpose of water fluoridation. Instead, 
individual state and territory governments specify the requirements regarding the quality of 
fluoridation chemicals.  

 In Queensland, water suppliers who fluoridate are required under the Water Fluoridation 
Regulation 2008 to ensure fluoride chemicals are of an appropriate quality by obtaining a batch 
analysis certificate, detailing the levels of any impurities. If such a certificate cannot be obtained 
from the manufacturer/importer or supplier, the water supplier must have the fluoride compound 
analysed by an appropriately accredited laboratory and obtain the results.  Information regarding 
impurity limits for fluoridation chemicals is prescribed in Appendix 1 of the Water Fluoridation 
Code of Practice.  The Code of Practice may be viewed at http://www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/ 
documents/ ehu/fluoride_codepractice.pdf  

5. Is the fluoride contained in toothpaste the same fluoride that is added to our water supply? 
If not, would the toothpaste manufacturers be permitted to use the same fluoride, from the 
same manufacturers, under the same control level, as the chemical that is added to our 
water supply? If not, why not?  

The fluoride contained in most toothpaste is in the form of monofluorophosphate or sodium 
fluoride.   

The Water Fluoridation Regulation permits the following forms of fluoride to be added to public 
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

Toothpaste manufacturers could (and some do) use the same fluoride compounds as added to 
drinking water.  

As indicated in the response to question 4, the impurity limits for fluoridation chemicals added to 
drinking water are prescribed in Appendix 1 of the Water Fluoridation Code of Practice.  The 
Code of Practice may be viewed at http://www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/documents/ehu/ 
fluoride_codepractice.pdf  

The impurity limits for fluoridation chemicals added to toothpastes will be determined by individual 
toothpaste manufacturers. 

6. Is the fluoride that is used the same chemical composition as has been tested on humans 
in the various trials that have been relied upon by the general public to be safe and 
efficacious? In other words, has the fluoride chemical now used been safety-tested and 
treated under strict control conditions as would be the case in other medical 
drugs/toxins/chemicals?  

The safety and effectiveness of water fluoridation has been frequently re-evaluated, and there is 
no clinical evidence that water fluoridation causes cancer, osteoporosis or other ill-health effects. 

All fluoride compounds permitted to be added to drinking water dissolve completely in water 
separating into their component ions when added to a water supply. For example, sodium fluoride 
breaks down into sodium and fluoride ions and sodium fluorosilicate also dissolves completely in 
water, breaking down into hydrogen, sodium, fluoride ions, silica and water.   
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After being added to drinking water, the fluoride ions are present in very low concentrations and 
are identical to those found in water containing naturally occurring fluoride.  

7. What assurances does Redland City have that each batch of the fluoride chemical used is 
tested thoroughly and independently prior to use, and that the correct amount of fluoride 
is being added to the water at all times?  

Seqwater to provide assurances and advise on equipment set up to ensure correct amount. 

QH suggested response: 

Drinking water providers who fluoridate are required to check the level of impurities in fluoridation 
chemicals by obtaining an analysis certificate for each batch supplied. If such a certificate cannot 
be obtained from the manufacturer, importer or supplier, the water provider must have the purity 
of the fluoridation chemical analysed by an appropriately accredited laboratory prior to adding any 
to the drinking water supply.  Furthermore, testing of fluoridated water must also be undertaken 
on a daily basis to ensure that it contains the correct concentration of fluoride.  

A number of engineering controls are employed to ensure fluoride is dosed safely and accurately. 
In particular, fluoride dosing equipment must comply with all regulatory requirements to ensure 
that the correct amount of fluoride is being added to the water at all times. Although there are a 
number of different engineering solutions available for fluoride dosing, dosing equipment relies 
upon adding fluoride at a rate that is proportional to the flow of water.  In addition, online fluoride 
analysers and legislated daily testing verify the fluoride concentration in the treated water. All 
dosing equipment is also designed such that, if any element fails, fluoride dosing is shut off 
automatically such that the outcome is underdosing rather than overdosing. 

8. If not, will you now suspend use until the actual chemical compound of the fluoride being 
used has been fully tested?  

QH suggested response: 

With reference to the response to question 7, and the assurances provided by Seqwater, there in 
no need to suspend the use of the approved chemical compounds. 

9. What is the amount per litre that is considered safe in Redland City’s drinking water? What 
is the concentration per litre of fluoride in our water distribution system?  

QH suggested response: 

The Water Fluoridation Regulation 2008 states that the prescribed concentration of fluoride for the 
Redland City Council local government area is 0.8mg/L. 

Under the Regulation the water supplier must undertake daily testing to monitor the fluoride 
concentration in the water supply.  The water supply is deemed to be in compliance with the 
Regulation if the measured fluoride concentration for the water supply for each day, averaged 
over a quarter, is +/-  0.1mg/L of the prescribed limit. 

A fluoride concentration of 0.8mg/L is well below the 1.5mg/L maximum fluoride concentration 
recommended in the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines 2011 and World Health Organization 
Guidelines for Drinking Water Quality 2006. 

Seqwater may wish to comment on testing results. 

10. What safety measures are in place if a greater than prescribed amount of fluoride is 
accidently or otherwise placed in the water supply? Is the water supply shut off if the 
concentration exceeds the permitted level?  Is Redland City Council informed if such an 
error takes place? How is that concentration monitored?  

Response to be provided by Seqwater 
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11. Please provide a complete description of the testing process and guidelines for approval 
being adhered to: 

Response to be provided by Seqwater 

 Has any batch received to date been refused? 

Response to be provided by Seqwater 

 If we chose not to use the fluoride in our water system and we dumped a batch into the 
refuse tip, would it be considered to be toxic waste? 

If the fluoride compounds added to drinking water were to be disposed of rather than added to 
drinking water supplies they would be considered to be regulated waste under Queensland 
environmental legislation.   

Regulated waste is commercial, industrial or construction waste that contains a substance or 
chemical compound listed within Schedule 1 of the Waste Reduction and Recycling 
Regulation 2011. 

It is important to remember that fluoride is not the only chemical added to drinking water 
supplies. A number of water treatment chemicals, including chlorine compounds used for 
disinfection, are regulated wastes and hazardous in their concentrated form but are safe and 
beneficial when dissolved and diluted in drinking water.   

When considering the hazard that chemicals added to drinking water pose to human health, 
an assessment must be made on the basis of the concentration of the chemical in the treated 
water. Water that has been fluoridated at 0.8 mg/L is safe for people and safe for the 
environment. 

 Does the fluoride contain any arsenic, uranium, chromium and/or lead?  

While all drinking water and all chemicals used in drinking water treatment may contain small 
amounts of impurities, the Water Fluoridation Regulation 2008 requires that fluoridation 
chemicals not be added to the water supply if they contain impurities at a concentration that is 
likely to adversely affect public health. All fluoridating chemicals used in Queensland must 
have a batch analysis certificate that shows the levels of any impurities in the batch. 
Information regarding impurity limits for fluoridation chemicals is prescribed in Appendix 1 of 
the Water Fluoridation Code of Practice.  The Code of Practice may be viewed at 
http://www.health.qld.gov.au/ph/documents/ehu/fluoride_codepractice.pdf 

 Would any municipality be permitted to add any of these chemicals to the water supply 
if not under the umbrella of fluoride?  

Water suppliers would not have any reason to intentionally add arsenic, uranium, chromium 
or lead to their drinking water supply. However, if these contaminants were to occur in other 
water treatment chemicals the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines include a process for 
determining the Recommended Maximum Impurity Concentration for these and other 
contaminants. By following this advice water suppliers can ensure that the concentrations of 
trace contaminants in drinking water are at safe levels.  

 What are the permitted levels of heavy or toxic metals in the water supply?  

The guideline values for various metals, adopted by drinking water regulators across 
Australia, are prescribed in the Australian Drinking Water Guidelines 2011. These can be 
viewed in Table 10.5 of the Guidelines which can be viewed online at: 

http://www.nhmrc.gov.au/_files_nhmrc/publications/attachments/eh52_aust_drinking_water_g
uidelines_update_120710_0.pdf  
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 Has the fluoridisation of the water added to these permitted concentrations?  

The practice of fluoridation has not influenced the derivation of the guideline values for heavy 
metals in the 2011 Australian Drinking Water Guidelines.  

 Please list each chemical and their permitted percentage of concentration. 

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

 What is the acceptable level of purity of the fluoride chemical?  

The minimum purity specifications for sodium fluorosilicate and sodium fluoride - the two 
fluoridation chemicals used in South East Queensland - are 98% and 97% respectively. 

12. The fluoride used is purportedly for the preservation of teeth, correct? When we brush our 
teeth, the toothpaste used goes straight to our teeth. Correct? What percentage of the 
fluoride ingested through drinking fluoridated water is absorbed by the teeth?  

The percentage of fluoride absorbed by the teeth following the ingestion of fluoridated water will 
vary from person to person.   

Fluoridated water, fluoride toothpaste and other fluoride products, provide a source of fluoride to 
saliva.  This fluoride binds with other minerals such as calcium and phosphorous that have been 
lost from tooth surfaces thereby assisting the process of remineralisation. 

As most people only brush twice a day, fluoride toothpaste does not supply a continual source of 
fluoride to the mouth.  Drinking fluoridated water, however, does provide a regularl source of 
fluoride to saliva throughout the day and provides additional benefit to that of fluoride toothpaste 
alone. 

13. For people who brush their teeth with toothpaste containing fluoride, is there any 
advantage, in terms of dental health, to drink water containing fluoride? In other words, 
why are we putting fluoride in drinking water when we already use fluoride in toothpaste 
for dental hygiene and protection against dental decay?  

The beneficial effect of water fluoridation is additional to that of fluoridated toothpaste. Even 
people who use fluoridated toothpaste still benefit from water fluoridation. Maximum benefits are 
obtained through a combination of a healthy diet, regular toothbrushing, appropriate use of 
fluoridated toothpaste, drinking optimally fluoridated water and regular reviews by a dental 
practitioner. 

14. If the fluoride in the water is for people who do not brush their teeth, why is everyone 
subjected to fluoride in the water because of their lack of adherence to healthy practices? 

As mentioned earlier, fluoridation has been shown to benefit not only those with poor oral health 
practices but those who brush their teeth regularly as well. 

15. What are the adverse effects of an overdose on fluoride?  

Water suppliers are required to employ a range of safeguards to ensure accurate fluoride dosing 
and prevent overdosing. In the unlikely instance of an overdose, the nature and extent of any 
resulting adverse health effects would be dependent on the magnitude and duration of the 
overdose. 
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16. What are the effects of ingesting fluoride on the other organs of the body? And what are 
the implications for individuals with conditions such as kidney problems?  

The safety and effectiveness of drinking water fluoridation has been frequently re-evaluated, and 
medical authorities advise that fluoridation is both safe and effective. 

Kidney Health Australia (KHA) does not oppose water fluoridation.  The organisation stated in 
2007 that ‘the available evidence suggests no link between the consumption of optimally 
fluoridated water and an increased risk of developing chronic kidney disease’.  In 2011, KHA 
conducted a review of the relevant literature published since 2007 and concluded that the ‘There 
has been no new published evidence to contradict the 2007 KHA Position Statement’. 

The risk of fluoridated water to patients undergoing kidney dialysis is sometimes quoted by the 
anti-fluoridation movement.  Because patients are exposed to extremely large volumes of water 
during kidney dialysis, the water must contain very low levels of minerals.  The levels of all 
minerals and ions, including fluoride, must be reduced before water is used for dialysis. Normal 
tap water, whether fluoridated or non-fluoridated, is not used for kidney dialysis.   

17. How can parents control the amount of fluoride being ingested by children of different 
ages who have different body weights, especially as fluoride comes from a variety of other 
sources in our environment which we are unable to monitor?  

In ordinary circumstances water fluoridation is not known to increase children’s fluoride intake to a 
level that could be considered hazardous to health. The only known side effect of optimal water 
fluoridation is a slight increase in prevalence of dental fluorosis.  Dental fluorosis or mottling of the 
teeth can occur if young children get too much fluoride when their adult teeth are forming.  
Fluorosis is mostly a cosmetic concern that is barely detectable and does not damage the teeth, 
whereas tooth decay is painful, unsightly and expensive to repair. Parents wishing to reduce the 
likelihood of their children developing dental fluorosis can do so by selecting low-fluoride 
toothpastes, ensuring their children use a ‘pea-sized’ amount of toothpaste and ensuring their 
children don’t swallow or eat the toothpaste. It is important to note that the benefits of water 
fluoridation in significantly reducing tooth decay clearly outweigh the low risk of dental fluorosis.   

18. What percentage of the fluoride ingested by a person is eliminated from the body of a 
healthy person after ingestion? What percentage remains stored in the body? In which 
organs? 

The percentage of fluoride eliminated from the body will vary from person to person and will vary 
for an individual from day to day. 

When swallowed, fluoride is absorbed via the stomach and intestines, and passes rapidly round 
the body in the bloodstream. Peak blood levels appear in 30-60 minutes after swallowing.  

Once in the blood, fluoride is gradually removed via the kidneys, reducing to half its original level 
in between three and ten hours. The long-term blood level is influenced by daily exposure as well 
as by take-up in growing bone and release as old bone is broken down. Children clear fluoride 
about as rapidly as adults.  

Of the fluoride that remains in the body, approximately 99 per cent remains in bones and teeth. 
The ion is incorporated into the mineral matrix of bone and teeth.  

http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/l-2/2.htm#0  
(Scientific Committee on Health and Environmental Risks – European Commission), 

RTI
 R

el
ea

se

RTI Document 98DOH-DL-12/13-010

http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/glossary/def/fluoride.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/glossary/def/fluoride.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/glossary/def/fluoride.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/glossary/def/fluoride.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/glossary/ghi/ion.htm
http://ec.europa.eu/health/scientific_committees/opinions_layman/fluoridation/en/l-2/2.htm#0


19. What is the risk to pregnant women and/or babies from ingesting fluoride?  

The consumption of optimally fluoridated water does not pose a health risk to pregnant women 
nor does it pose a health risk to infants being breastfed. With respect to use of infant formula, the 
2007 NHMRC review on the Efficacy and Safety of Fluoridation concluded that “recent Australian 
research does not show an association between use of infant formulae and dental fluorosis.  The 
critical period for development of dental fluorosis is after the first twelve months of life, by which 
time the majority of Australian children have ceased exclusive formula consumption.  
Measurements were made of 49 samples of formula available at supermarkets, finding that the 
fluoride concentrations have fallen considerably to allow reconstitution with fluoridated water.”  
(http://www.nhmrc.gov.au/_files_nhmrc/file/media/media/rel07/Fluoride_Flyer.pdf) 

20. Has Council acknowledged and considered Australia's National Research Council report 
("Fluoride in Drinking Water" which is 507 pages long and which took 3.5 years to write) of 
the detrimental effects of fluoride on children's teeth (enamel fluorosis) and the 
subsequent weakening of bones in adulthood due to cumulative exposure? 

Response to be provided by Council 

QH suggested additional wording: 

The report referred to in this question is American not Australian.  The “Fluoride in Drinking 
Water” report is the United States’ National Research Council’s review of the United States’ 
Environmental Protection Agency’s Standards focussed on the health risk posed by consuming 
drinking water with high levels of naturally occurring fluoride (greater than four milligrams per 
litre).  

This report is therefore not relevant to the practice of water fluoridation in Queensland, where 
fluoride is added at between 0.6 and 0.8 milligrams per litre. American health authorities such as 
the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention continue to endorse the practice of water 
fluoridation to prevent and control tooth decay. 

The report specifically stressed that its conclusions did not apply to optimally fluoridated water. 

21. What is the cost to Council (other than possible health costs) to continue with 
fluoridisation of the City’s water? 

Response to be provided by Seqwater. 

22. What is the cost to Council to discontinue with fluoridisation of the City’s water? 

Response to be provided by Council and/or Seqwater. 

23. Is Council or the supplier of our water in any way contracted to purchase the fluoride 
chemical in the future?  

Response to be provided by Seqwater. 

24.  Is Council prepared to advise residents of the answers to the questions above, without 
bias and sugar coating?  

Response to be provided by Council. 
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Labourer

VRN: 12/13-016 (based in Kingaroy)
Permanent Full Time
$45-47K per annum 

Council is seeking a team member to undertake 
duties which may include concreting and drainage 
work, road construction and maintenance work 
on sealed and unsealed roads and maintenance 
on various other infrastructure.  Experience in the 
operation and maintenance of small plant and 
participation in on call and after hours work is also a 
requirement of this position.

Mandatory:

•	 General Construction Induction Card (White 
Card)

•	 Minimum requirement of a current C Class 
drivers’ licence

Desirable:

•	 Relevant plant tickets and/or truck licences 
(MR, HR, HC)

•	 First aid certificate 
Traffic Control Ticket (Level 1) 

Closing Date:  5:00pm 1 February 2013

GIS Officer

VRN: 12/13 005 (based in Kingaroy)
Permanent Full Time

$59K - $64K per annum

Council is seeking an experienced individual to 
support our Geographic Information System (GIS) 
by assisting in the efficient storage, retrieval and 
use of information. Tertiary qualifications in spatial 
technology, outstanding interpersonal skills, basic 
technical skills in PC Hardware, troubleshooting, 
windows operating systems and the MS Office 
Suite will see you succeed in this role.  

Closing Date:  5:00pm 25 January 2013 

Benefits include:

•	 Up to 12% employer superannuation 
contribution

•	 Salary packaging
•	 Corporate membership to private health fund

The position descriptions and information on how 
to apply for these positions are available from 
Council’s website or by visiting one of Council’s 
Customer Service Centres. 

For further information contact Human Resources 
on  4189 9244.

Australia Day Awards 
Ceremony 2013

South Burnett Regional Council invites you to 
attend the fifth annual 2013 Australia Day Awards 
ceremony. 

Date:	 Friday, 25 January 2013  
	 (eve of Australia Day)

Time:	 6:00pm for 6.30pm start

Location:	 Blackbutt Town Hall 
	 Coulson Street, Blackbutt Qld 4605

Fluoridation Decision

South Burnett Regional Council

Public Notice

Water Fluoridation Act 2008

Fluoridation Decision

At Council’s General Meeting held Wednesday 
16 January 2013, it was resolved that Council will 
cease to add Fluoride to the public potable water 
supplies in the towns of Blackbutt, Nanango, 
Kingaroy, Wondai and Murgon, effective as of 
Friday 1 March 2013.

Ken McLoughlin
Chief Executive Officer

COUNCIL NEWSFor more information please visit Council’s website www.southburnett.qld.gov.au or contact Council on  4189 9100.

***EMPLOYMENT VACANCIES***

Qld Health and Council 
Mosquito Survey

Queensland Health will partner with South Burnett 
Regional Council to conduct a voluntary household 
mosquito survey over the next few weeks.

The purpose of the survey is to monitor the presence 
of any mosquito species of medical significance (for 
example the Dengue Mosquito). Early detection of 
the Dengue Mosquito can help authorities prevent 
an outbreak of Dengue Fever. This data will assist in 
planning for future vector control in the area.

The survey officers who carry identification cards, 
which will be displayed to the property occupier.

Property owners are encouraged to assist in the 
survey.

For any enquiries please contact Council’s 
Environmental Health Team on  4189 9100.

** Reminder **
Executive Liaison Officer 

Closing Date:  5:00pm Today

South Burnett
Regional Council

RTI Release
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From:         @southburnett.qld.gov.au> 
To:              @health.qld.gov.au> 
CC:    ealth.qld.gov.au> 
Date:          
Subject:  South Burnett Fluoridation Decision Notice 
Attachments: Qld Health Fluoridation Decision Notification 18-1-2013.pdf 
 
Hi    please find attached Council's correspondence and forms as required under the Water Fluoridation 
Ac      giving notice of Council's fluoridation decision and subsequent date for the cessation of 
fluoridation. 
Originals will be posted to you Monday. I will continue to liaise with     in relation to 
decommissioning procedure as per our email yesterday. Should you h    y questions regarding this 
matter, please contact me as below. 
 

 
              
                     

PO Box 336 
KINGARO      
'                  
7                
;              @southburnett.qld.gov.au<mailto:%3cYourEmail%3e@southburnett.qld.gov.au> 
              www.southburnett.qld.gov.au<http://www.southburnett.qld.gov.au/> 
[cid:image001.jpg@01CDF591.776F5360] 
DISCLAIMER: This electronic mail message is intended only for the addressee and may contain 
confidential information. If you are not the addressee, you are notified that any transmission, distribution or 
photocopying of this email is strictly prohibited. The confidentiality attached to this email is not waived, 
lost or destroyed by reasons of a mistaken delivery to you. The information contained in this email 
transmission may also be subject to Right to Information and Information Privacy Legislation. 
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From:  Fluoride <fluoride@deedi.qld.gov.au> 
To:             @health.qld.gov.au> 
CC:         @health.qld.gov.au>, Fluoride <fluoride@d... 
Date:  15/01/2013 9:52 am 
Subject:  FW: TRIM: Tablelands Regional Council Fluoridation Resolution 
Attachments: FLUORIDE TO WATER SUPPLY.pdf 
 
Hello   
 
FYI attached is Tablelands Regional Council Fluoridation Resolution from 20 December 2012, decision 
was not to fluoridate. Has QH been notified of this decision? 
 
Regards, 

 
 
 

         
       

  
Department of State Development, Infrastructure and Planning 
 
Level 7, 63 George Street Brisbane 
PO Box 15517 City East Queensland 4002 Australia 
 
Telep         Facsimile        
Email        @dsdip.qld.gov.au 
Webs     qld.gov.au 
Work Pattern: Mon, Wed, Thurs, Fri 
 
PPlease consider the environment before printing this email 
 
 
 
________________________________ 
From:                      
Sent:               
To:     
Cc:          
Sub            Council Fluoridation Resolution 
 
Attention:   
 
Good morning   
 
Please find attached the TRC resolution from its meeting of 20 December 2012. 
 
The current status of the various TRC projects is therefore as follows: 
 
 
 1.  Malanda and Kuranda 
    *   Both plants are 99% complete but fluoride has not been added to the water supplies 
    *   You have a draft subsidy claim to 90% of the approved funding to which TRC needs a response 
    *   TRC will now prepare Project Close Out Reports for these and claim 100% subsidies 
    *   TRC requires advice from QFCAP on their policy and processes for dealing with such redundant 
plants to allow the Close Out Reports to be completed. 
 2.  Mareeba 
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    *   The Financial Incentive Agreement will now obviously not be signed 
    *   TRC will submit a claim to QFCAP for reimbursement of its design, documentation and 
tendering costs to date. 
 3.  Atherton 
    *   TRC will submit a claim to QFCAP for reimbursement of its design and documentation costs to 
date. 
 4.  Ravenshoe 
    *   QFCAP should have received a claim from TRC for reimbursement of its design and 
documentation costs to date for which it awaits a response. 
 
Your early advice on the Department's progress on these matters will be very much appreciated. 
 
 
Thanks and best regards 
 

     
Project Manager to TRC 
      

 
 
 
********************************DISCLAIMER**************************** 
The information contained in the above e-mail message or messages 
(which includes any attachments) is confidential and may be legally 
privileged.  It is intended only for the use of the person or entity 
to which it is addressed.  If you are not the addressee any form of 
disclosure, copying, modification, distribution or any action taken 
or omitted in reliance on the information is unauthorised.  Opinions 
contained in the message(s) do not necessarily reflect the opinions 
of the Queensland Government and its authorities.  If you received 
this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately 
and delete it from your computer system network. 
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User Instructions

If necessary to view the original Agenda Item, double-click on ‘Agenda Report’ blue 
hyperlink above.

ACTION FROM ORDINARY MEETING

Held on Thursday, 20 December 2012
For ADHOC-11

SUBJECT: FLUORIDE TO WATER SUPPLY

Moved by Cr   Seconded by Cr   

"That Council resolve fluoride not be added to potable water supplies within the jurisdiction of 
Tablelands Regional Council."

CARRIED 5-4

Cr    and  voted against the motion.
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WATER FLUORIDATION REGULATION 2008 
SECTION 11 

Form 3 
 
 

FLUORIDATED WATER QUARTERLY 
REPORT 

 

 

 
1. Water Supplier and Supply Details 
 
Name of Water Supplier 
 

McKinlay Shire Council 

 

 
Name of Treatment Plant    Location of Bore 
 
N/A 

 
Julia Creek 

 
Service Provider Registration Number 
 

SPID 84 

 

 
 
2. Contact Details 
 

          Position 
 

   
 

EHO 

 

 
Phone    Fax    Mobile 
 

  
 

 
 

   

 

 
Email 
 

   

 
 

  
Signed        Date 
 
 

 

 
 
3. Results 
Reporting Period 
 
 
 

From: October  To: December    Year: 2012                                                 
 
Fluoridated Water Results for the above quarter 
 
 

Number of fluoridated water samples analyzed as per section 13 of 
the Water Fluoridation Regulation, 2008. 

 
 

2 
 
 

Average measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

2.95 
 
 

Maximum measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

3.0 
 
 

Minimum measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

2.9 
 
 

Number of samples exceeding 1.5 mg fluoride/L 

 

2 
 

  
 

This form must be retained by the water supplier for a period of at least 5 years. Completion of the table above ensures 
compliance with the reporting requirements of Section 11 of the Water Fluoridation Regulation, 2008. 
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

 
Kynuna 

 
Service Provider Registration Number 
 

SPID 84 

 

 
 
2. Contact Details 
 
Family Name   Given Name/s   Position 
 

   
 

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

 
 

0.295 
 
 

Maximum measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

0.29 
 
 

Minimum measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

0.30 
 
 

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

 
McKinlay 

 
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

 
 

1.3 
 
 

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

 
Nelia 

 
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
. 
 
Fluoridated Water Results for the above quarter 
 
 

Number of fluoridated water samples analyzed as per section 13 of 
the Water Fluoridation Regulation, 2008. 

 
 

1 
 
 

Average measured fluoride concentration 

 
 

0.15 
 
 

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
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